

MARIST COLLEGE ASHGROVE

A Catholic boys' day and boarding College in the Marist Tradition

Child Safeguarding Policy

Contents

Introduction	2
Purpose	2
Scope	3
Statement of Commitment to Child Safety and Wellbeing	3
Child Safeguarding Standards	3
The National Catholic Safeguarding Standards	3
Children and Young People's Rights to Safety, Information and Participation	4
Parents/Carers, Families and Community Involvement at the College	4
Valuing Diversity in the College Community	5
Our Child Safeguarding Program	5
Reporting Child Safety Incidents or Concerns to the College	7
Responsibilities for Child Safeguarding at the College	8
Our Senior Child Safeguarding Officer	9
The Council of the Australian Conference of the Association of St Marcellin Champagnat	9
Marist Schools Australia	9
Marist Schools Australia National Director	10
The MSA Regional Director	10
The Head of College	10
Staff	10
Volunteers	10
Contractors	11
External Education Providers	11
Child Safe Human Resources Management	11
Child Safe Risk Management	12
Record Keeping	12

142 Frasers Road Ashgrove QLD 4060 PO Box 82 Ashgrove West QLD 4060 ABN 13 937 359 780



Phone: +61 7 3858 4555 Fax: +61 7 3858 4502 Email: marist@marash.qld.edu.au Web: www.marash.qld.edu.au



Policy and Program Review	. 12
Non-Compliance with Our Child Safeguarding Policy	. 13

Policy History and Schedule

Approved by:	Head of College		
Person(s) responsible:	Deputy Head of College		
Date approved:	22/08/2023		
Next review date:	22/08/2024		
Printed copies of this document may not be up to date. Ensure you have the latest version before use.			

Introduction

The Marist College Ashgrove Child Safeguarding Policy implements the requirements of the Child and Youth Risk Management Strategy. It also implements, and is to be read and understood in conjunction with the National Catholic Safeguarding Standards published by Catholic Professional Standards Ltd.

This Child Safeguarding Policy, which includes our Statement of Commitment to Child Safety and Wellbeing, has been approved and endorsed by the Marist Schools Australia Leadership Team on 04 September 2021. It is to be reviewed annually.

This Child Safeguarding Policy is published on our College's public website and provided to new Staff, and to Direct Contact Volunteers and Direct Contact Contractors at induction. It is also made available to Regular Contractors and Regular Volunteers prior to their engagement with the school. It is also communicated through other mediums such as newsletters, College assemblies and new staff induction packs for new staff members.

Purpose

Our Child Safeguarding Policy, which includes our Statement of Commitment to Child Safety and Wellbeing, was written to demonstrate the strong commitment of the College to child safety, and to provide an outline of the policies and practices that we have developed to keep our students safe, including from abuse or other harm.

It is an overarching policy that provides the key elements of our approach to the College as a child safe organisation and sets the tone for the College's entire Child Safeguarding Program.



The Child Safeguarding Policy provides the framework for:

- the development of work systems, practices, policies and procedures that promote child protection, safety and wellbeing within the College
- the creation of a safe and supportive College environment and a positive and robust child safe culture
- the promotion and open discussion of child safety issues within the College; and
- compliance with all laws, regulations and standards relevant to child protection in Queensland.

Scope

The College's Child Safeguarding Policy applies to all adults in the College community, including Staff, Volunteers, Contractors, External Education Providers, parents/carers and other family members. This policy applies in all College environments, both physical and online, and on-site and off-site College grounds (e.g. camps and excursions).

Statement of Commitment to Child Safety and Wellbeing

All children and young people who come to Marist College Ashgrove have a right to feel and be safe. We are committed to the safety and wellbeing of all children and young people. We are committed to providing a child safe and child friendly environment, where children and young people are safe and feel safe, and are able to actively participate in decisions that affect their lives.

We have a zero tolerance for child abuse and other harm and are committed to acting in students' best interests and keeping them safe from harm.

The College regards its child safeguarding responsibilities with the utmost importance and is committed to providing the necessary resources to ensure compliance with all relevant child protection laws and regulations and maintaining a child safe culture.

Child Safeguarding Standards

In addition to implementing the requirements of the Child and Youth Risk Management Strategy, the College's commitment to child safety is based on the National Catholic Safeguarding Standards published by Catholic Professional Standards Ltd. which sets out the following overarching standards that guide the development and regular review of our work systems, practices, policies and procedures to protect students from abuse and other harm.

The National Catholic Safeguarding Standards



The National Catholic Safeguarding Standards (NCSS) expand on the National Principles for Child Safe Organisations, specifically for Catholic settings. They set out 10 overarching standards that guide the development of a child safe culture for Catholic entities. Compliance with the NCSS is mandatory for all Catholic entities.

The NCSS are:



Children and Young People's Rights to Safety, Information and Participation

Marist College Ashgrove is a child safe and child-centred organisation. Our environment is friendly and welcoming to all children and young people.

We actively seek to include students in decisions that affect them. This includes decisions about organisational planning, delivery of services, management of facilities, and classroom learning and assessment environments.

We ensure students know about their rights to safety, information and participation. We recognise the importance of friendships and support from peers. We actively seek to understand what makes students feel safe in our organisation and regularly communicate with students about what they can do if they feel unsafe.

Parents/Carers, Families and Community Involvement at the College



The College recognises that parents and carers have the primary responsibility for the upbringing and development of their children. We ensure they participate in decisions affecting their children.

We ensure families and relevant communities know about the College's operations and policies, including its Child Safeguarding Policy and Child Safe Codes of Conduct, record keeping practices, risk management, and complaints and investigation processes.

We actively seek to include families and relevant communities in decisions about organisational planning, delivery of services, management of facilities, and classroom learning and assessment environments.

We build cultural safety at the College through partnerships with relevant communities.

Valuing Diversity in the College Community

Our College values diversity and does not tolerate any discriminatory practices. To achieve this, we:

- support the cultural safety, participation and empowerment of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander students and their families
- support the cultural safety, participation and empowerment of students from culturally and/or linguistically diverse backgrounds and their families
- welcome students with a disability and their families and act to promote their participation
- welcome students and families of diverse sexuality and act to promote their participation
- seek to recruit a workforce that reflects a diversity of cultures, abilities and identities
- ensure all Staff, Direct Contact Volunteers and Direct Contact Contractors have training about Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander cultures, disability, culturally and/or linguistically diverse backgrounds, and those with particular experiences or needs
- have a physical environment that actively celebrates diverse cultures and recognises cultural difference
- commit to ensuring our facilities promote the inclusion of students of all abilities.

Our Child Safeguarding Program

Marist College Ashgrove is committed to the effective implementation of our Child Safeguarding Program and ensuring that it is appropriately reviewed and updated. We adopt a risk management approach by identifying key risk indicators and assessing child safety risks based on a range of factors including the nature of our College's activities, physical and online environments and the characteristics of the student body.



Our Child Safeguarding Program relates to all aspects of child safety and protecting students from abuse or other harm, and establishes work systems, practices, policies and procedures to create and maintain a child safe environment and culture at the College. It includes:

- Child Safe Codes of Conduct
- clear information as to what constitutes
- child abuse and other harm and associated key indicators of abuse or other harm
- clear procedures for reporting child safety incidents or concerns internally, and for responding to allegations of child abuse or other harm
- strategies to support, encourage and enable Staff, Volunteers, Contractors, parents/carers and students to
- understand, identify, discuss and report child safety matters
- procedures for recruiting and screening members of the College Leadership Team, Staff, Volunteers and Contractors
- procedures for reporting to external agencies, including Mandatory Reporting and Reporting to Police
- pastoral care strategies designed to empower students and keep them safe
- strategies to support and encourage the participation and inclusion of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander students,
- students from culturally and/or linguistically diverse backgrounds and
- students with disability
- child safeguarding training
- information regarding the steps to take after a disclosure of abuse or other harm to protect, support and assist students
- guidelines with respect to record keeping and confidentiality
- policies to ensure compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and standards (including the National Catholic Safeguarding Standards published by Catholic Professional Standards Ltd.)
- a system for continuous review and improvement.

As a part of Marist College Ashgrove's induction process, all Staff, as well as Direct Contact Volunteers and Direct Contact Contractors are required to complete induction in our child safeguarding policies, practices and procedures. Regular Contractors and Regular Volunteers receive information sheets with respect to the College's child safeguarding policies, practices and procedures prior to commencing work at the College. All Staff, as well as Direct Contact Volunteers and Direct Contact Contractors also receive refresher and ongoing child safeguarding training.



Staff, Direct Contact and Regular Volunteers, and Direct Contact and Regular Contractors are supported and supervised by the College's Child Safeguarding Officers and College Leadership Team to ensure that they are compliant with the College's approach to child safety.

Reporting Child Safety Incidents or Concerns to the College

Our Child Safeguarding Program provides detailed guidance for members of the College Advisory Board, Staff, Volunteers and Contractors on how to identify key indicators of child abuse and other harm and how to report child safety incidents or concerns internally to one of our College's Child Safeguarding Officers. It also contains detailed procedures with respect to the reporting of child abuse incidents to relevant external authorities.

Students at the College are provided with information about and encouraged to use multiple pathways to raise child safety incidents or concerns about or at the College. These include informal and formal ways, an 'anonymous' way, and through external child advocacy or child safety organisations. Formally, as required by the Education (Accreditation of Non-State Schools) Regulation 2017 (Qld), our Child Safeguarding Officers are nominated as staff members to whom students can report concerns about the conduct of another staff member that the student considers is inappropriate.

<u>Parents/carers, family members and other community members</u> who have child safety concerns or who suspect that a child or young person associated with the College may be subject to abuse or other harm can contact:

- the College's Senior Child Safeguarding Officer Charles Brauer, by phoning 0404 083 631 or emailing brauerc@marash.gld.edu.au, or
- the Head of College or, if the concern relates to the Head of College or Deputy Head of College, the College's MSA Regional Director, Mark Elliott.

Students, parents/carers, family members and other community members can also raise child safety incidents or concerns through the College's Complaints Handling Policy.

Any person can also contact the College's MSA Regional Director if they have concerns regarding the College's leadership in relation to child safety.

Communications will be treated confidentially on a 'need to know basis'.

Whenever there are concerns that a child is in immediate danger the Police should be called on 000.



Responsibilities for Child Safeguarding at the College

Child Safeguarding is everyone's responsibility. All adults in the College community have a shared responsibility for contributing to the safety and protection of students. Specific responsibilities include:

The College's Child Safeguarding Officers

A number of senior staff members are nominated as the College's Child Safeguarding Officers. Our Child Safeguarding Officers receive additional specialised training with respect to child safety and protection issues. They are a point of contact for raising child safety concerns within the College. They are also responsible for championing child safeguarding within the College and assisting in coordinating responses to child safety incidents.



Contact details for our Child Safeguarding Officers are set out below:

Name	Position	Contact No.	Email Address
Charles Brauer	Deputy Head of College	0404 083 631	brauerc@marash.qld.edu.au
Peter Serone	Assistant Head of College - Students	0428 545 600	seronep@marash.qld.edu.au
Phill Holding	Pastoral Leader - Senior	07 3858 4555	holdingp@marash.qld.edu.au
Josh Kersevani	Pastoral Leader - Senior	07 3858 4555	kersevanij@marash.qld.edu.au
Michael Connolly	Assistant Head of College - Primary	0439 547 280	connollym@marash.qld.edu.au
	School		
James Noble	Head of Boarding	0439 077 022	noblej@marash.qld.edu.au
Anthony Graham	Pastoral Leader Primary Years	07 3858 4550	grahama@marash.qld.edu.au
Genevieve Long	College Psychologist	07 3858 6435	longg@marash.qld.edu.au
Brodie Sheehan	College Psychologist	07 3858 6478	sheehanb@marash.qld.edu.au
Jorge Ruiz	College Psychologist	07 3858 4609	ruizj@marash.qld.edu.au

Our Senior Child Safeguarding Officer

Marist College Ashgrove has also appointed Charles Brauer as the College's Senior Child Safeguarding Officer. The Senior Child Safeguarding Officer is contactable by phone on 0404 083 631 or by emailing brauerc@marash.gld.edu.au.

The Senior Child Safeguarding Officer has additional child safeguarding responsibilities, such as being a first point of contact for all child safety concerns or queries for the wider community, and coordinating the College's response to child safety incidents in consultation with the Head of College, the College Leadership Team and Marist Schools Australia.

The Council of the Australian Conference of the Association of St Marcellin Champagnat

The Council of the Australian Conference of the Association of St Marcellin Champagnat (the Association Council) is the College's governing body. Through the Marist Association Professional Standards Committee, the Association Council is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the College's Child Safeguarding Program.

Marist Schools Australia

Marist Schools Australia (MSA) is responsible for implementing all Child Safeguarding policies and protocols across the College.



The Association Council has delegated its functions relating to the management and implementation of the College's Child Safeguarding Program to MSA.

Marist Schools Australia National Director

The Chief Executive Officer of MSA is the MSA National Director. The MSA National Director is responsible for ensuring that each MSA-governed school complies with relevant legislation, the National Catholic Safeguarding Standards and other requirements of the Catholic Church and the Association Council.

The Head of College has delegated authority from the MSA National Director for operational management of the College, including the management and implementation of the College's child safeguarding policies and procedures.

The MSA Regional Director

The MSA Regional Director is responsible for ensuring that the College complies with relevant legislation, the National Catholic Safeguarding Standards and other requirements of the Catholic Church and the Association Council.

The Head of College

The Head of College is responsible, and will be accountable for, the operational management of the College, and the Child Safeguarding Program. The Head of College is responsible for taking all practical measures to ensure that this Child Safeguarding Policy and the College's Child Safeguarding Program is implemented effectively and that a strong and sustainable child safe culture is maintained within the College.

The Head of College of the College is accountable to the MSA Regional Director.

Staff

All Staff are required to comply with our Child Safeguarding Policy and Child Safe Codes of Conduct, be familiar with our Child Safeguarding Program and understand their legal obligations with respect to the reporting of child abuse and other harm, and Blue Cards and Exemption Cards. It is each individual's responsibility to be aware of key indicators of abuse and other harm, to be observant, and to raise all child safety incidents and concerns with one of the College's Child Safeguarding Officers.

Volunteers

All Volunteers at the College are responsible for contributing to the safety and protection of students in the College environment.



All Volunteers are required to comply with our Child Safeguarding Policy and Child Safe Codes of Conduct. Direct Contact and Regular Volunteers are required to understand their legal obligations with respect to the reporting of child abuse and other harm.

It is each individual's responsibility to be aware of key indicators of child abuse and other harm, to be observant, and to raise all child safety concerns with one of the College's Child Safeguarding Officers.

Contractors

All Contractors engaged by the College are responsible for contributing to the safety and protection of students in the College environment.

All Contractors engaged by the College are required to comply with our Child Safeguarding Policy and Child Safe Codes of Conduct. Direct Contact and Regular Contractors are required to understand their legal obligations with respect to the reporting of child abuse and other harm. The College may include this requirement in the written agreement between it and the Contractor.

Direct Contact and Regular Contractors include, for example, maintenance and building personnel, consultants, casual teachers, tutors, sports coaches and College cleaners. This also includes music teachers and other extra-curricular teachers and instructors who are engaged by students and their families directly, rather than the College, but have an agreement with the College to use the College's facilities.

External Education Providers

An External Education Provider is any organisation that the College has arranged to deliver a specified course of study that is part of the curriculum, to a student or students enrolled at the College. The delivery of such a course may take place on College premises or elsewhere.

All External Education Providers engaged by the College are responsible for contributing to the safety and protection of students in all College environments. All External Education Providers engaged by the College are required by the College to comply with our Child Safeguarding Policy and Child Safe Codes of Conduct. Marist College Ashgrove may include this requirement in the written agreement between it and the External Education Provider.

Child Safe Human Resources Management

Marist College Ashgrove applies best practice standards in the recruitment and screening of Staff and relevant Volunteers and Contractors. Our recruitment procedures comply with the College's Child Safe



Human Resources Management policy and ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to engage the most suitable and appropriate people to work with children and young people. All Staff and relevant Volunteers and Contractors are required to maintain a valid Blue Card or Exemption Card.

The College ensures that the College Leadership Team, Staff and Direct Contact Volunteers and Direct Contact Contractors undergo child safeguarding induction, and ongoing education and training as part of our commitment to safeguarding children and young people from harm.

Staff, Direct Contact Volunteers and Direct Contact Contractors are subject to regular supervision and performance monitoring whilst engaging with students.

The College ensures that professional development programs for Staff include child safeguarding education and training programs.

Child Safe Risk Management

The College recognises the importance of a risk management approach to minimising the potential for child abuse or harm to occur and we use this information to inform our policies, procedures and activity planning.

The College has developed a comprehensive Risk Management Program to assist in the identification, assessment and management of child safety risks in all College environments.

Record Keeping

The College has a Child Safeguarding Record Keeping Policy and is committed to best practice record keeping. In accordance with our policy, and as required by our Procedures for Responding to and Reporting Child Safety Incidents or Concerns, all internal and external reports of child safety incidents and concerns, as well as any other responses by the College are recorded using the *Responding to an Incident, Disclosure or Suspicion of Child Abuse or Other Harm* template.

In maintaining records of child safety incidents or concerns, the College maintains confidentiality and privacy for students and families in accordance with federal and state privacy legislation.

Policy and Program Review

Marist College Ashgrove is committed to the continuous improvement of our Child Safeguarding Program. The Program is regularly reviewed for overall effectiveness and to ensure compliance with all child protection related laws, regulations and standards.



The College is committed to actively seeking, actioning, and incorporating into this Policy, feedback from students, families, the wider College community, Staff, Volunteers and Contractors, and will communicate any adjustments or amendments widely throughout the College community.

Non-Compliance with Our Child Safeguarding Policy

Marist College Ashgrove enforces this Child Safeguarding Policy and our Child Safe Codes of Conduct. In the event of any non-compliance, we will instigate a review that may result in a range of measures including (depending on the severity of the breach):

- remedial education
- counselling
- increased supervision
- the restriction of duties
- suspension, or
- in the case of serious breaches, termination of employment, contract or engagement.